

As accepted 17th November 2011
EASTERN GOLDFIELDS CRICKET ASSOCIATION
By-laws (incorporating Playing Conditions)

DEFINITIONS

ASSOCIATION	means Eastern Goldfields Cricket Association
BY-LAW	means any By-law contained in this document
CLEARANCE FORM	means any form approved by the Association from time to time
CLUB	means any cricket club authorised by the Association to participate
COMMISSION	means Board of Commissioners appointed from time to time
COMMISSIONER	means a member of the Board of Commissioners
EGCA	means Eastern Goldfields Cricket Association
LAWS OF CRICKET	means the Laws of Cricket as defined and recognised by the Australian Cricket Board and Marylebone Cricket Club
PLAYER REPORT FORM	means a form approved by the Association for use under By-law 11
OFFICIAL	means any Club representative holding the position of president, vice-president, secretary, treasurer, committee member, coach, assistant coach, selector, team manager or any other officially recognised position
SECRETARY-TREASURER	means the person appointed to this role by the Association

1 GENERAL RULES

All matches shall be played in accordance with the laws of cricket as recognised by the ACB and WACA match rules. These apply to matches played under the control of the EGCA, unless specified below. The order of precedence shall be:

1. EGCA by-laws (incorporating playing conditions)
2. WACA match rules
3. Laws of Cricket as recognised by the ACB
4. Laws of Cricket (MCC)

2. REGISTRATION LIST

2.1 REGISTRATION LIST

- 2.1.1. A Club registration list showing the full name, address and telephone number of every player shall be forwarded by each Club to the Association prior to the commencement of the season.
- 2.1.2 Any player not shown on this list but subsequently playing during the course of the season must comply with the By-laws relating to new registrations as set down in By-law 2.2.

2.2 NEW REGISTRATIONS

- 2.2.1 A registration form showing the full name, address and telephone number shall be completed by the Club in respect of each player who has not previously played or been registered with the Club.
- 2.2.2 The player's form must be received by the Secretary-Treasurer before 12pm on the Friday prior to the commencement of the match.
- 2.2.3 The Commission, at its absolute discretion, may refuse, cancel or review the registration of any player.

2.3 CLEARANCES

- 2.3.1 A Clearance Form showing the full name, address and telephone number and duly signed by an Official of the player's previous Club, shall be completed in respect of each player who is transferring from a Kalgoorlie Friendlies Association Club or another club of the EGCA . The clearance form must be received by the Secretary-Treasurer before 12pm on the Friday prior to the commencement of the first match in which he plays for the Club. Such player shall not be granted a clearance and shall not be registered with his new Club until he discharges all obligations, including financial to his former Club.
- 2.3.2 A clearance is not required for a player who has not played for any Club in the preceding season, or a player who has played only for a junior Club or an interstate or overseas Club, including clubs outside of this association.
- 2.3.3 A clearance is required for a player transferring between Clubs within the EGCA or the Kalgoorlie Friendlies Cricket Association. No clearances from the Kalgoorlie Friendlies Association Clubs or another EGCA Club will be granted after December 31 of the current season.

2.4 GRANTING OF CLEARANCES

2.4.1 A Club shall, upon application, grant a clearance to a player who is financial but shall not grant a clearance to a player who is unfinancial or is in any way indebted to the Club.

2.4.2 If a clearance is:

- Unreasonably withheld for a player
- Is refused for a financial player or
- A Club does not reply to a clearance application within seven (7) days after receiving it, the Commission may, upon application and receipt of proof of the player's financial status, grant a clearance to that player.
- The Commission has, at its own discretion, the right upon a second clearance being declined by the players club to refer the matter to the EGCA tribunal to hear the case.

2.5 PENALTIES for UNREGISTERED, UNCLEARED or INELIGIBLE PLAYERS

2.5.1 In the event that a team plays an unregistered, uncleared or ineligible player in a competition match, such team shall be declared to have lost the match on a forfeit. The opposing team shall be awarded the match on a forfeit and shall be credited with forfeit match points, plus any incentive points earned. If both teams play an unregistered, uncleared or ineligible player, the result of the match shall be declared void.

For the following infringements of the By-laws the team shall be liable for a fine (refer Appendix A), all premiership points shall be cancelled and the scores of the player involved shall be disregarded. The scores of the team and all other players, and the premiership points of the opposing team shall stand:

2.5.2 Where a team plays a player for whom a registration form or clearance form has not been correctly completed and lodged.

2.5.3 Where a player plays under a name other than his own (refer to Appendix A). The player shall also be suspended for a period at the discretion of the Commission.

2.5.4 Where a player plays for two teams in the same set of fixtures. The team for which he played second shall be penalised.

3 TRANSFERS TO LOWER GRADE

- 3.1 On a match by match basis a player may transfer from the A grade team for which he last played to the B grade team within his Club.

4 FINALS MATCHES

4.1 TEAM QUALIFICATIONS

- 4.1.1 Finals matches shall be contested between the top three (3) teams in each grade at the completion of the qualifying matches. If two or more teams are level on points, the positions shall be decided by averages.

These positions to be determined by:

- (1) Higher number of head to head matches won;
- (2) If the number of matches won and the number of outright wins equal, the formula shown hereunder will be utilised to separate the teams:

Runs scored divided by runs against

The team with the higher number of points under this formula will be placed in the higher position on the table.

- 4.1.2 In both grades:
- The team completing the season at the top of the premiership ladder automatically qualifies to play in the grand final.
 - The teams finishing second and third on the ladder shall play in a preliminary final, the winner qualifying to play in the grand final.

4.2 PLAYER QUALIFICATIONS

- 4.2.1 A player must be registered with a club affiliated in the EGCA competition in the current season.
- 4.2.2 If a player has played more than 50% of his qualifying matches in A grade, that player is ineligible to play in the finals for B grade. (Any match cancelled due to poor weather etc stands as a qualifying match for the purpose of this By-law).
- 4.2.3 Should a club have A and B grade teams playing on the same weekend any player ruled ineligible under 4.2.2 may play in the grade of his club's choice.
- 4.2.4 To qualify to play finals cricket, a senior player must have played 3 qualifying games for the club in that season. In regards to junior players, provided they are registered with that club for that season, there is no qualifying games clause.

A player in breach of this By-law shall be deemed an ineligible player and the team for which he played shall forfeit the match.

4.3 RESIDENTIAL QUALIFICATION

- 4.3.1 Residential qualification means having a fulltime residential address within 250 kilometres of the Kalgoorlie Post Office for a period of 30 days.
- 4.3.2 Should a player not have a fulltime residential address within 250 kilometres of the Kalgoorlie Post Office, he shall be required to be within 250 kilometres of the Kalgoorlie Post Office for five days prior to the scheduled fixture.
- 4.3.3 Players who meet residential qualification and undertake Fly In Fly Out employment or those that travel outside the zone during the 5 day requirement prior to the scheduled fixture are eligible to play.
- 4.3.4 A player who has played 7 games during the current season for a club and leaves the district for any reason before the end of the season shall be deemed residentially qualified to represent that club in any match of that season, irrespective of his current residential address.
- 4.3.5 The provision of By-Law 4.3.2 shall not apply to players who are students and who are compelled to leave the district during the academic year to pursue their studies (this includes institutions such as universities or other comparable colleges or schools).
- 4.3.6 Players on returning to the Goldfields during university, school or college vacations may be eligible to play with the club to which they are registered prior to leaving the district to pursue their studies and will not be required to serve any period of residential qualification.

4.4 INTERNATIONAL PLAYERS

- 4.4.1 Each club shall be allowed to play two (2) international players. That means no more than two (2) in a side per club and per grade
- 4.4.2 An overseas player is defined as a non-Australian resident except that (a) he has been transferred to WA in permanent full time employment, or (b) he intends making permanent residence in WA for a minimum of two (2) years.

5 FORFEITS

5.1 TEAM WITH FEWER THAN SEVEN PLAYERS

If a team has fewer than seven (7) players available to start play 15 minutes after the scheduled starting time, a toss shall then be made for the choice of innings.

If, 30 minutes after the scheduled starting time has elapsed, the team still has fewer than seven (7) players at the ground, the opposing team shall win the match on a forfeit.

5.2 FORFEITURE of a MATCH

If a team forfeits a scheduled fixture for any reason whatsoever, the offending Club shall be liable for a fine (refer Appendix A).

5.3 MATCH WON on a FORFEIT

If a team wins a match on a forfeit in accordance with By-laws 5.1 or 5.2, it shall forward to the Association a completed team list showing the names of its players. The form must be lodged with the Secretary-Treasurer by the first Tuesday following the completion of the scheduled match.

6 CRICKET ATTIRE

6.1 CRICKET ATTIRE PERMITTED

- 6.1.1 Every player participating in Club competition matches shall wear proper cricket attire which comprises white or cream long trousers, white or cream shirt with collar attached, white socks, white shoes or boots, white or Club pullover, white or Club-coloured protective headgear, white hat or cap or Club hat or cap in Club colours. Clubs can also wear commission approved, club colour uniforms.
- 6.1.2 Club or other logos or emblems may be worn on shirts, but only with the approval of such logos or emblems first having been obtained from the Commission.
- 6.1.3 Players who have earned the right to own an EGCA cap or hat are permitted to wear the cap or hat in Club matches.

6.2 PENALTIES FOR INCORRECT CRICKET ATTIRE

For each infringement of this By-law, the Club shall be liable for a fine (refer Appendix A).

7 SCORE BOOKS

- 7.1 Each captain and both umpires, upon being satisfied, at the conclusion of play, with the correctness of the opposing team's scorebook, shall sign the book.

Once the scorebook has been signed by the opposing captain, neither he nor his Club, may plead its incorrectness.

- 7.2 In the event of a dispute in the scores, both scorebooks shall be impounded by the umpire, who shall forward them to the Secretary-Treasurer or a Commissioner within 24 hours of the close of play on the day of dispute.
- 7.3 Any book delivered to the EGCA statistician that is incomplete or deemed unreadable, will be subject to fine as per Appendix A. Second and subsequent breaches will be dealt with at the discretion of the Commission.

8 MARKING OF GROUNDS

Clubs will be responsible for all boundary markings – including the fielding restriction circle if necessary – as instructed by the Association.

9 PREMIERSHIP POINTS

9.1 MATCH POINTS

- 9.1.1 Six (6) match points shall be awarded to the winning side in qualifying matches – in both A and B grade matches and a further 4 points for an outright victory in 60 over formats.
- 9.1.2 In the event of a drawn or tied match, each side shall be awarded three (3) points.

9.2 BONUS POINTS

- 9.2.1 Bonus points shall be awarded in qualifying matches as follows, for 50 and 60 over fixtures:
- (a) Batting teams makes 200 or more in an innings they receive 1 point.
 - (b) Bowling teams that take all 10 wickets in an innings receive 1 point.
 - (c) If the side batting first declares there innings closed before facing their full allotted overs, this will count as the bowling side taking all 10 wickets required for their bonus point.

(d) If the side batting second passes the opposition total and has subsequently won the match, they have complete control on whether to go for any bonus points that they may be able to achieve. The side batting second may declare their innings closed at any stage after winning the game. If they declare their innings closed after winning the game but have or have not achieved there bonus point and have not lost all there 10 wickets, the side bowling second will not earn their bonus point.

(d) If the side batting second declares there innings closed before facing their full allotted over's and the result of the match has not been determined, this will count as the bowling side taking all 10 wickets required for their bonus point.

10 MATCH REPORTS

- 10.1 At the completion of each match, the winning team shall forward to the EGCA statistician by 7.30pm on the day of the match, that teams scorebook in a neat and tidy manner.
- 10.2 For each infringement of this By-law the Club shall be liable to a fine (refer to Appendix A).
- 10.3 In the event of a drawn or tied match, the team mentioned first on the fixture shall be responsible for the Match Report.

11 UMPIRES

11.1 ASSOCIATION UMPIRES

The Commission shall appoint independent umpires to officiate in Club competition.

11.2 ASSOCIATION UMPIRES NOT IN ATTENDANCE

- 11.2.1 If an official Association umpire is not appointed to or is not in attendance at the scheduled start time of a match, the captains may agree to appoint a person or persons to act as umpire(s) for the match.
- 11.2.2 If an official Association umpire is not appointed to or is not in attendance at the scheduled start time of a match, and it is NOT agreed that another person act as umpire for the match, a player or player(s) of the batting team shall act as umpire(s) for the innings of his team.

11.3 TEAM LISTS

The umpire shall ensure that a team list, containing the names of each team's players participating in the match, is completed by both captains prior to the start of the match. Such list shall be forwarded to the Secretary-Treasurer by 12.00pm on the Monday following the match.

- 11.4 Appointment of finals umpires and the method of rewarding the umpire of the year is up to the discretion of the Commission.

12 REPORTS

- 12.1 The umpire(s) shall report any infringements of these By-laws committed by any Club or player in a Club competition match on the field of play or at the ground on which it is played. The umpire(s)' jurisdiction commences 30 minutes prior to and extends to 30 minutes after the completion of the match. During these times, the umpire(s) may make reports on infringements of the By-laws or laws of cricket.

The umpire shall, not later than forty-five (45) minutes after the close of play on the day of the offence being committed, notify the captain, or player acting in that capacity, or an Official of the Club concerned, of his intention to report and the nature of the charge. The umpire shall request that person to sign the Player Report Form to signify his notification of the report and shall also present a copy of the Player Report Form to that person.

Failure by that person to sign the Player Report Form does not invalidate the report but may render the reported player's Club liable to a fine (refer to Appendix A).

- 12.2 The report shall be noted on or attached to the Player Report Form and must be notified verbally to the Secretary-Treasurer and lodged with the Secretary-Treasurer no later than 5pm on the first Monday following the completion of the match in which the alleged offence was committed.
- 12.3 An umpire may recommend that a minimum prescribed penalty be imposed on a player reported for an offence without the necessity to convene a meeting of the Disciplinary Tribunal, or may recommend that the report be referred directly to the Disciplinary Tribunal for consideration.
- 12.4 A player may accept the minimum prescribed penalty (refer to Appendix C) for a reportable offence without the necessity to attend a meeting of the Disciplinary Tribunal. The player shall indicate on the Player Report Form his acceptance or otherwise of the minimum prescribed penalty.

- 12.5 The player's Club will then be advised by the Secretary-Treasurer, by 1pm on the Tuesday following completion of the match in which the report was made, if the player will be required to attend a meeting of the Disciplinary Tribunal.

13 TRIBUNAL

There shall be a Disciplinary Tribunal as the Commissioners shall from time to time appoint.

- 13.1 The Tribunal shall be constituted by five persons (three to form a quorum), the chairman of which is to be a Justice of the Peace or a suitably qualified person determined by the Commissioners.
- 13.2 A person who holds office of any kind in the EGCA - except those without voting rights - and a person who holds office of any kind in a Club shall not be eligible for appointment.
- 13.3 The Tribunal shall exercise the following functions and their decisions shall be final:
- (a) Hear all charges in respect of offences under the Laws of Cricket or under these By-laws.
 - (b) Hear all protests and all disputes and charges against players and officials and any other matters referred to it by the Commissioners.
 - (c) Re-open or re-hear any matter previously dealt with as they see fit. Any application to re-open any matter previously dealt with by the Tribunal must be lodged with the EGCA within seven days of that determination.
 - (d) Hear and determine any matter referred or lodged pursuant to the Laws of Cricket or under these By-laws.
 - (e) Impose such penalties authorised by the Laws of Cricket and these By-laws as it deems fit.
- 13.4 The Secretary-Treasurer shall in all cases be satisfied that the relevant By-laws have been complied with before submitting any matter for the hearing and determination of the Tribunal.
- (a) The Tribunal shall meet to consider any matter at any time convenient to it.
 - (b) The Tribunal meeting may be adjourned to another time.
 - (c) Any EGCA appointed umpire who lodges a charge against any player or Official of a Club shall attend at the Tribunal hearing of that charge.
 - (d) Any player or Official of any Club against whom a charge has been lodged shall attend at the Tribunal hearing of the charge.
 - (e) Any player or Official of any Club against whom an offence has been allegedly committed in respect of which a charge has been lodged shall attend the Tribunal hearing of that charge.

- (f) Any person referred to in paragraphs (c), (d) and (e) of this By-law may be excused from attendance by the Tribunal but only if exceptional circumstances can be established to require such excuse.
- (g) The Tribunal may, of its own motion or at the request of any party to a matter before it, require the attendance at a Tribunal hearing of any player or Official of a Club or any umpire.
- (h) Any person required to attend at a Tribunal hearing shall give evidence if required by the Tribunal to do so.
- (i) A player or Official of any Club who appears before a Tribunal as a result of a charge made against him pursuant to the Laws of Cricket or these By-laws shall, unless the Tribunal directs otherwise, be accompanied and may be represented at the hearing by a representative of his or her Club.
- (j) An umpire preferring a charge under the Laws of Cricket or these By-laws against a player or an Official of any Club shall, unless the Tribunal directs otherwise, be accompanied and may be represented at the hearing by, a representative of the EGCA Umpires Association or panel.
- (k) A player or Official of any Club or umpire against whom an offence is alleged to have been committed and the offence is the subject of a charge shall, unless the Tribunal directs otherwise, be accompanied and may be represented at the hearing of the charge by a representative of his Club or the EGCA Umpires Association or panel as the case may be.
- (l) In any other proceeding before a Tribunal a person required to appear may be accompanied and represented at the proceeding by a representative of his Club or the organisation to which he belongs.
- (m) In any of the cases referred to in paragraphs (c), (d), (e), (j), (k) and (l) of this By-law the representative of the Club, association or organisation shall not be a legal practitioner.
- (n) A Tribunal may for its purposes rely on such evidence as it thinks fit and in particular may admit statutory declarations and other writings as well as verbal evidence. It may proceed in the absence of any person.
- (o) Any person who, required by these By-laws to attend a hearing of a Tribunal, fails to attend as required and does not show good cause for such failure
 - or**
 - Any person who as required by these By-laws attends a hearing of a Tribunal but refuses to answer any question in the course of the hearing and does not show good cause for such refusal
 - or**
 - Any person who as required by these By-laws attends at a hearing of a Tribunal and in the course of giving evidence at the hearing wilfully endeavours to mislead the Tribunal
 - or**
 - Any person who attends at a hearing of a Tribunal and acts in an unseemly manner:

Shall be deemed to be guilty of misconduct and shall thereupon be liable to suspension or disqualification as a player or Official or both or to a fine not exceeding \$500 as the Tribunal may determine.

14 OFFENCES AND PENALTIES

- 14.1 The Commission may by resolution from time to time declare any acts or omissions by players or Officials to be offences under the Laws of Cricket and/or these By-laws and may also declare the penalty for such offences.
- 14.2 Any player or Official who acts or conducts themselves in a manner prejudicial to the good order, management, control and administration of cricket commits an offence under the Laws of Cricket and these By-laws and shall be liable to a fine not exceeding \$500 or, in the case of a player, disqualified from playing during such term as the Commission deems fit
or
In the case of an Official, disqualified from acting as an Official in any capacity either permanently or during such time as the Commission deems fit.
- 14.3 Where no specific penalty is prescribed in respect of any offence under the Laws of Cricket and these By-laws, the Commission may impose a fine not exceeding \$1000 and/or disqualification.
- 14.4 While any fine imposed on a player or Official under the Laws of Cricket and these By-laws remains unpaid the player or Official shall not be eligible to play or officiate in any capacity in any scheduled fixture conducted by the EGCA. Any such unpaid fine is the ultimate responsibility of the player's or Official's Club.

15 OTHER PROTESTS & CHARGES

- 15.1 Any Club may prefer a protest or charge against any other Club, player or Official of another Club by written notice to the Secretary-Treasurer of the EGCA and to the Club, player, Official or member concerned.
- 15.2 Any Club making any protest or charge against another Club or player or Official of another Club, or reporting any infringement of these By-laws or the Laws of Cricket shall forward the same with particulars in writing to the Secretary-Treasurer together with the sum of \$100 within three days after the date upon which the occurrence complained of took place (the day of the occurrence shall count as one of such three days). Any protest or charge under this rule shall be referred to the Commissioners and be considered by them at the meeting of the Commissioners next following the date upon which such protest or charge was received by the

Secretary-Treasurer. The Commissioners may dismiss any such protest or charge if they consider it frivolous or vexatious but otherwise they shall refer it to the Tribunal for determination. The said sum of \$100 shall be forfeited to the EGCA upon dismissal by the Commissioners or if it be decided by the Tribunal that the protest or charge was frivolous or groundless but shall be refunded if the protest or charge is upheld or the Tribunal so directs.

- 15.3 The Secretary-Treasurer, upon receiving from any Club a protest or charge against another Club, player or Official of another Club shall give notice thereof and of the particulars to such Club within 24 hours.

16 TROPHIES

Trophies shall be awarded annually, to be decided by the Commission.

16.1 TEAM TROPHIES

The premier team in each grade shall be awarded a shield, to be held for a period of twelve (12) months only

16.2 PLAYER TROPHIES

- 16.2.1 Players in each grade shall be awarded trophies for the:

- Highest batting aggregate
- Highest batting average
- Best bowling aggregate
- Best bowling average
- Best all rounder

- 16.2.2 The player in each grade receiving the highest number of votes for the season awarded by Association umpires shall be awarded a trophy. He shall be the Cricketer of the Year for that grade.

The umpire, or in the absence of an Association umpire, the two captains by mutual agreement, shall award votes for each match on the basis of six (6) votes per match with the best player awarded a maximum of three (3) votes for games where there is a result.

- 16.2.3 To qualify for any EGCA awards, a player must have obtained the necessary match statistics as set down.
- Batting averages or aggregates = A grade 250 runs or more
= B grade 200 runs or more
 - Bowling averages or aggregates = A grade 20 wickets or more
= B grade 15 wickets or more
 - The All Rounder Awards shall be decided by the Commission. In determining these awards, batting, bowling and fielding performances will be taken into account.

Any player reported and found guilty of an offence shall be ineligible to win the Cricketer of the Year award.

To clarify averages and aggregates, each team will submit on demand its scorebooks for inspection by the Commission.

17 FINANCIAL

17.1 MONIES AND FINES PAYABLE

Monies due to the Association shall be paid as determined by the Commission in consultation with the Clubs. Fines to be paid within 30 days of the date imposed.

17.2 UNFINANCIAL CLUBS AND PLAYERS

- 17.2.1 Any Club or person failing to comply with By-law 17.1 shall not participate in any competition match conducted or controlled by the Association until the amounts are paid.
- 17.2.2 Unless otherwise agreed by the Commission, any team or player or Official of that Club, which/who participates in a competition match while monies are outstanding under By-law 17.1, match points shall not be awarded to the team in default but match points as earned by the opposing team shall stand. If both teams are in default, the result of the match shall be declared void and match points shall not be awarded to either team. Incentive points shall not be awarded but the individual scores in the match shall stand for the purpose of awarding trophies.
- 17.2.3 Any Club which has not made itself financial up to date of the Annual General Meeting, or any adjournment thereof, will not be permitted to take part in any discussion or to vote upon any matter then submitted for decision. Neither will any such Club be permitted to affiliate with the Association until any arrears relating to any previous season have been satisfactorily adjusted with the Commission.
- 17.2.4 Any player that has participated in the annual country week series and has not paid the full amount owed for participating in the series will be deemed ineligible to play in the EGCA again till the amount is paid in full. If the player in question plays before the monies has been paid in full, his team will forfeit the match and points awarded to them in default, their opposition will receive the 6 points for winning the game and any bonus points they may have earned themselves in the game. The individual scores in the match shall stand for the purpose of awarding trophies.

APPENDIX A

<u>By-law</u>	<u>Fine (Max.)</u>	<u>Offence</u>
	\$100	Playing an unregistered or uncleared player
	\$100	Playing a player under a name other than his own
	\$50	Playing a player in B grade if he is ineligible
	\$250	Team forfeiting a match
	\$50	Incorrect cricket attire
	\$50	Boundary line not marked; boundary flags or markers not positioned
	\$50	Player smoking on the field
	\$50*	Non lodgment, late lodgment unreadable match results forms or lodgment of incomplete or incorrect forms. *Plus \$10 for each week the form is outstanding – fine to increase by \$10 for each subsequent offence by the same team
	\$100	Player, captain or team official not signing Player Report Form
	\$100	Failure to attend a tribunal hearing or submit a Statutory Declaration

APPENDIX B

\$50	Deposit to accompany statement of protest, appeal or complaint
------	--

APPENDIX C

<u>Reportable offences</u>	<u>Minimum Prescribed Penalty</u>
Intimidating or putting an umpire under pressure by gesture or words	1 match
Making disparaging remarks about an umpire	1 match
Persistent sledging of opposition player(s)	\$100
Refusing to give name to an umpire	\$ 50
No action taken by captain to control his players after being requested to do so by an umpire	\$100
Throwing bat, gloves, helmet or other equipment	\$100
Kicking or knocking over stumps deliberately	\$100
Deliberate time wasting	\$100
Fieldsman making ridiculous appeals	\$ 50
Fieldsman and bowler directing a batsman off the ground by gestures or words	\$ 50
Fieldsman or bowler making disparaging remarks about a batsman's ability	\$ 50
Batsman making disparaging remarks about a bowler or fieldsman's ability	\$ 50
Dissent of an umpire's decision by gestures or words	1 match
Player entering the field of play to query or dispute an umpire's decision	1 match
Abusing or swearing at an opposition player	\$100
Abusing or swearing at an umpire	2 matches

Reportable offences to heard by the Disciplinary Tribunal

Misconduct

Threatening an opposition player

Threatening an umpire

Assaulting or striking or attempting to strike an opposition player

Assaulting or striking or attempting to strike an umpire